ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 26, 2015
1: 30 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M a Costello, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or Kevi n Meyer

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Johnny Ellis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 15
"An Act relating to the tax on policy year premuns for life
i nsurance policies."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 47

"An Act relating to exenptions for cash surrender val ues,
accrued dividends, and |oan values of life insurance and annuity
contracts.”

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 39

"An Act repealing the film production tax credit; providing for
an effective date by repealing the effective dates of secs. 31 -
33, ch. 51, SLA 2012; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 15

SHORT TI TLE: LI FE | NSURANCE POLI CY PREM UM TAX
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 26, 2015



01/ 21/ 15 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (S) L&C, FIN

02/ 04/ 15 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRAL S
02/ 04/ 15 (S) L&C, FIN

02/ 26/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 47
SHORT TITLE: LIFE | NSURANCE/ ANNUI TY EXEMPTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

02/ 11/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 15 (S) L&C, JUD
02/ 26/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 39
SHORT TI TLE: REPEAL FI LM PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI T
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STOLTZE

02/ 04/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 15 (S) L&C, FIN

02/ 19/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 19/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 24/ 15 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 24/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 24/ 15 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 15 and SB 47.

CERVAN BAQUERO, Intern

Senat or John Coghi | |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 15 and SB 47 on behalf of the
sponsor.

LORI W NG HEI ER, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -2- February 26, 2015



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information and explained the
fiscal notes on SB 15 and SB 41.

MATHEW BLATTMACHR, Vi ce President and

Trust O ficer

Al aska Trust Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting testinony on SB 15 and
SB 47.

LI NDA HULBERT, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 15 and SB 47.

SHARON HAWN, representing herself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

JACY PETERSEN, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

TESS WEAVER, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

M CHAEL COLLI ER, Random Acr onym
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

LEVI TAYLOR, Crooked Pictures
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

MARY WASCHE, representing herself
Eagl e R ver, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

DEBORAH SCHI LDT, Presi dent

Al aska Fil m Group

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

BOB CROCKETT, Ceneral Manager

Pi ksi k

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- February 26, 2015



MAYA SALGANEK, UAF Fi |l m Program
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

NATALI A LAMONT, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

| RENE BEDARD, Presi dent
Sl eepi ng Lady Filnms Waki ng G ant Productions
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

KEN LANDFI ELD, representing hinsel f
Honer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

JAVES WALKER, Wl ki ng West Entertai nment
Los Angeles, California
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:30: 35 PM

CHAIR M A COSTELLO call ed the Senate Labor and Comrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Ellis, Meyer, Gessel, Stevens and Chair
Costel | o.

SB  15-LI FE | NSURANCE POLI CY PREM UM TAX

1:31: 53 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO announced the consideration of SB 15. "An Act
relating to the tax on policy year premiuns for |ife insurance
policies.”

SENATOR JOHN COGHILL, sponsor, SB 15, stated that this
|l egislation is designed to keep Al aska conpetitive in the field
of trusts. He deferred further introduction to his intern.

1:33: 19 PM
GERVAN BAQUERO, Intern, Senator John Coghill, introduced SB 15
speaking to the following sponsor stat enent : [Oiginal

punct uati on provided. ]

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 26, 2015



SB 15 requires that taxes for single or group life
insurance policies shall be set at 0.08 percent
exceedi ng $100, 000.

In 2014, taxes on insurance premuns constituted 8.6
per cent of non-petrol eum unrestricted revenues,
approximately 55 mllion dollars. In 2015 the forecast
for life insurance revenue is projected to rise to 9.5
percent, approximately 57 mllion dollars, and in 2016
it is expected to remain at the sane level but rise to
approximately 59 mllion dollars.

Back in 1998 because of virtually no collection of
taxes on policies of over $100,000 the Comm ssioner of
| nsurance dropped taxes from 2.7 percent to 0.1
percent over $100,000 for insurance premuns. Yet
al ready by 2006 the state of South Dakota had matched
the state of Alaska and then sone, dropping down to
0. 08% over $100,000, thereby undercutting revenue for
Al aska. This has resulted in a sizable reduction of
the nunber of life insurance policies over $100, 000
sold in this state.

In order to remain conpetitive Al aska then nust natch
South Dakota now, and a cut in the premium from 0.1
percent to 0.08 percent is the appropriate response to
Sout h Dakota’s success and good sol ution for Al aska.

1:37:32 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if this legislation puts Al aska on par
with South Dakota and if other states would still be nore

advant ageous.

MR. BAQUERO confirnmed that this legislation will put Al aska on
par with South Dakota. He couldn't speak to the rates in other
st at es.

SENATOR COGHI LL added that Al aska has been on the conpetitive
edge for estate planning since 1998, which has attracted a |ot
of investnment cash. This legislation attenpts to bring Al aska
policy in line with |eading states such as New Jersey and South
Dakot a.

CHAI R COSTELLO expressed appreciation for the |egislation and
offered her belief that it will benefit Al aska.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the bill has a fiscal note.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 26, 2015



MR. BAQUERO deferred to the director of the Division of
| nsurance to explain the fiscal inpact.

SENATOR MEYER asked how many tinmes the interest rate has been
changed since 1998.

MR. BAQUERO offered his wunderstanding that it hasn't changed
si nce 1998.

1:41: 45 PM

LORI WNG HEIER, Director, D vision of Insurance, Departnent of
Commerce, Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), stated
that the division submtted an indetermnate fiscal note because
it seens that the industry could make up any difference by
attracting nore business with the reduced rate. She noted that
in the last year, the difference between collecting 0.10 percent
versus 0.08 percent would have resulted in $15,961 less to state
coffers. Looking back to 2011, the l|argest difference, based on
105 policies, was $89, 000.

SENATOR MEYER asked if the legislation pertains to a particular
type of life insurance policy.

M5. WNG HEIER replied it could be any type of policy but she
believes nost would be whole |ife because those policies are
used for estate planning.

1:44: 13 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked to what extent Al askans will benefit from
this | egislation.

M5. WNGHEIER replied Alaskans as a consunmer wll benefit
because they'Il pay 0.02 percent lower on their prem um
Al askans as a whole wll benefit from the anticipated increase
in volume in premum tax, which wll result in a larger

contribution to the state coffers.

CHAIR COSTELLO asked M. Blattmachr to discuss how this
legislation fits in wth Aaska's role in the insurance
i ndustry.

MATHEW BLATTMACHR, Vice President and Trust Oficer, Al aska
Trust Conpany, explained that in 1998 Al aska adopted new age
trust planning rules. Since then the legislature has added to
those in an effort to stay at the forefront of trust planning.
Fifteen states have passed laws simlar to Alaska's and 11

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- February 26, 2015



ot hers have sonme form of what Al aska has on the books. SB 15
seeks to keep Alaska on the conpetitive edge and levels the
playing field with South Dakota. That state currently has the
| onest tax rate on insurance policies, whereas Al aska is second.

SENATOR MEYER asked if the legislation pertains to a particular
type of |life insurance policy.

MR. BLATTMACHER replied it could apply to all policies wth
prem uns greater than $100,000 per year, but it's likely to be
used nore for permanent types of insurance rather than term

1:47:15 PM

LI NDA HULBERT, representing herself, said she's worked in the
i nsurance industry for 25 years and has enjoyed watching it grow
since the inception of the Alaska Trust Act. Wen the
| egislation first passed there were very few policies that had
premunms that exceeded $100,000. Since then nmany people,
Al askans included, have been attracted to Alaska to do their
estate planning. Changing the premium tax rapidly increased the
anount of noney that's cone into the state for use in the
general treasury. She said she supports the reduction in the tax
rate to nake Al aska conpetitive with South Dakota. She described
the legislation as good public policy, which wll attract
addi ti onal revenue.

1: 49: 52 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO announced she would hold SB 15 in commttee for
further consideration.

SB 47- LI FE | NSURANCE/ ANNUI TY EXEMPTI ONS

1:50: 11 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO announced the consideration of SB 47. "An Act
relating to exenptions for cash surrender values, accrued

dividends, and Iloan values of life insurance and annuity
contracts."
1:50: 41 PM
GERVAN BAQUERO, Intern, Senator John Coghill, introduced SB 47

on behalf of the sponsor. He spoke to the follow ng sponsor
statenent: [Original punctuation provided.]

Under the Alaska Exenptions Act under Chapter 38 of
Title 9 in the Code of Civil Protections there are
currently six exenptions that exist from attachnent,
garni shment, or execution by a creditor in civil

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 26, 2015



actions. One of these exenptions under AS 09.38.025(a)
is an exenption of up to $500,000 on un-natured life
insurance. SB 47 goes in and repeals the $500,000
[imt in AS 09. 38.025(a).

In effect SB 47 brings AS 09.38.025(a) in line wth
ot her exenptions found in the Al aska Exenption Act,

such as: burial plots, longevity bonuses, tuition
credits, t he per manent fund di vi dend, medi cal
benefits, |liquor |I|icenses, paynents found under the

Senior Benefits Paynment Program  conpensation of
benefits exenpt under federal law, and retirenment plan
interests and paynents.

While the law currently provides protection of non-
estate assets up to $500,000, having a limt in the
first place clearly does not assist in the protection
of assets or pre-bankruptcy planning. Wile states
i ke South Carolina, Wsconsin, and New York expressly
define cash surrender values from life insurance as
exenpt, still many states ultimately rely on judici al
interpretation of a debtor’'s intent. This bill wll
provi de people with a better security and planning for
their famlies after they have passed on.

This bill encourages personal responsibility and
protects the future of Al askan famlies.

1:54: 17 PM

SENATOR JOHN  COGHI LL, Sponsor of SB 47, described the
legislation as an estate planning tool that extends the
exenption to someone who is investing his/her own noney. He
noted that the bill provides fraud protections.

SENATOR STEVENS asked who the bill benefits and who it harns.

SENATOR COGHI LL replied it helps people who are building an
estate through industry-based pl anni ng.

MR. BAQUERO added that it wll provide security to those who
seek insurance as part of their estate nanagenment and it wll
help the beneficiaries of these insurance policies while the
policies are unmatured. Once the policy is matured and the
assets have been transferred to the beneficiaries, they are
subject to restitution or garnishment.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked Lori Wng-Heier to discuss the fiscal note.

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- February 26, 2015



1:59: 38 PM
LORI WNG HEIER, Director, Division of Insurance, Departnent of
Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), stated

that the bill anmends Title 9 and doesn't directly inpact the
i nsurance statutes in Title 21. The division submtted a zero
fiscal note in the belief that it wll not inpact what the

di vision collects on prem umtaxes.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if the adm nistration has a position on the
bill.

M5. WNG HEIER replied she hasn't heard that the adm nistration
had taken a position.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked M. Blattmachr to provide his perspective
of the bill.

2:01: 08 PM

MATHEW BLATTMACHR, Vice President and Trust Oficer, Al aska
Trust Conpany, stated that SB 47 hel ps keep Alaska in the top
tier of states for estate planning and financial planning in
general .

CHAIR COSTELLO asked him to discuss the fraud protections
provi ded by the four-year |ook-back at the state level and ten-
year | ook-back at the federal |evel for bankruptcy proceedi ngs.

MR. BLATTMACHR clarified that the legislation wouldn't change
the fact that these policies are assignable as collateral, and
could be attached if assigned. He also pointed out that Al aska's
estate planning laws protect individuals who engage in estate
and financial planning, but only to the extent that they do not
W illfully defraud a creditor. He opined that the four-year state
| ook-back to review bankruptcy proceedings and the ten-year
federal | ook-back are anple procedures to prevent that type of
mal i ci ous activity.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if he had information about other states'
policies regarding creditors.

MR. BLATTMACHR recounted that South Dakota and Nevada have a
t wo-year | ook-back, Chio is 18 nonths, Delaware is three years,
and Al aska matches a nunber of other states with a four-year
| ook- back.

2:04: 32 PM

SENATE L&C COWM TTEE - 9- February 26, 2015



LI NDA HULBERT, representing herself, said she's worked in the
i nsurance industry for 25 years and she supports SB 47. It wll
help people to legitimtely plan for their future and help
Al aska conme on par for planning purposes with states such as New
York, Florida, Texas, and Arizona. She recounted that many
Al askans who have businesses put any extra noney back into their
business in the early years rather than putting it away for
retirement. SB 47 provides a neans for these people to save for
their retirenent when they can by putting noney into life
i nsurance. She opined that the bill could raise revenue for the
state by encouragi ng people to save, because for every $100, 000
the state woul d receive $2, 700.

2:07: 48 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO announced she would hold SB 47 in commttee for
further consideration.

2:08: 20 PM
At ease

SB  39- REPEAL FI LM PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI T

2:11:22 PM

CHAIR COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and announced the
consideration of SB 39. "An Act repealing the film production
tax credit; providing for an effective date by repealing the
effective dates of secs. 31 - 33, ch. 51, SLA 2012; and
providing for an effective date."

2:12:15 PM

SHARON HAWN, representing herself, Wasilla, Alaska, testified in
opposition to SB 39. She reviewed the history of film production
in the state including her involvenent, and offered her belief
that the bill intends to elimnate the program altoget her.

2:19:19 PM

JACY  PETERSEN, representing hersel f, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in opposition to SB 39. She explained that she is a
CPA who conducts audits for the film tax verification and she
has seen that the tax credit program brings business to the
state and jobs for Al askans.

2:21:58 PM

TESS WEAVER, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in opposition to SB 39. She tal ked about her personal experience
and professional training in film production and said she
doesn't want to |eave Alaska to continue to pursue her career

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 10- February 26, 2015



The noney she receives is recycled through | ocal businesses. She
asked the committee not to take away what she and others have
wor ked so hard to create.

2:23:33 PM

M CHAEL COLLI ER, Random Acronym Anchorage, Al aska, testified in
opposition to SB 39. He spoke of the all-Al askan project he is
undertaking and said that without the tax incentive all the
nmoney has to be returned to investors and the 70 jobs wll

di sappear. He said that filnms could be a billion dollar industry
for Alaska and would provide security in the current fiscal
crisis. He cautioned against killing an industry that could help

to diversify the econony.

2:26:10 PM

LEVI TAYLOR, Crooked Pictures, Anchorage, Alaska, testified in
opposition to SB 39. He spoke of wanting to be an inspiring
filmaker since mddle school. H's first successful film won
maj or awards in Hollywod and he was offered opportunities to
stay there and continue to work. However, because of the film
incentives he was able to return to Al aska. Wiat he noticed is
that the industry has grown inpressively in a short tine. He
urged the conmittee not to kill a rising industry that offers
di versity.

2:27: 27 PM

LAURA LIMKINS, Epicenter Productions, Eagle River, Al aska,
testified in opposition to SB 39. She reviewed her 25 year
history with the industry in Al aska that includes devel oping an
educational series about perpetuating Alaska |anguages and
culture. She pointed out that elimnating the film tax credit
won't do away with the reality shows, but it will do away wth
the large productions that conme to the state. She urged the
commttee to think about how the film tax program diversifies
t he econony and strengthens its foundati on.

2:29:19 PM

MARY  WASCHE, representing herself, Eagle River, Al aska,
testified in opposition to SB 39. She recounted her story as a
senior citizen who is trying to becone a fiction witer. She was
at the signing stage when this |egislation stopped the project.
She pointed out that keeping the film incentive program wll
allow creative witers to present the state as it really is, not
as it's being depicted by reality shows. She said the nunbers
show that this program is a tiny portion of Alaska s serious
budget deficit, and keeping the program could bring growh and
dollars to the state.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- February 26, 2015



2:31:57 PM

DEBORAH SCHI LDT, President, Alaska Film Goup, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in opposition to SB 39. She said she has
worked in the industry for 30 years and the state's current
fiscal crisis is brought on in part by its lack of economc
diversity. It didn't happen overnight. She cited data from the
2013 Feature Film Production Report to refute the prior
testinmony from the Manhattan Institute claimng that Al aska's
film program didn't pencil out . The figures show that
substantial nunbers of jobs and revenue cone to states that have
a filmincentive program in place. She enphasized that the key
is to have a programthat is in place and that is where Al aska
has to stay if it wants to conpete. Breathtaking scenery is no
| onger enough; locations are trunped by economc realities. She
urged the commttee not to shut the door on diversity the state
needs today and in the future.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked Ms. Schildt to send a copy of the 2013
Feature Film Production Report and she would distribute it to
the conmm tt ee.

2:35: 07 PM

BOB CROCKETT, General Manager , Pi ksi k, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in opposition to SB 39. He tal ked about recently being
in the field with a crew of 20 Al askans filmng in Tal keetna and
outside Wiittier. He said Piksik invested mllions in the film
i ndustry because they had a commtnent from the state for 10
years. Last session the time to realize a return on those
investnments was reduced from 10 years to 4 years. Wth the
introduction of SB 39 they're looking at a sunset on July 1,
2015, which is a daunting challenge for any business. He opined
that the answer to the state's current fiscal crisis 1is
diversification and the film industry is on the right track to
provide that. Governor Walker's actions suspended the program
but if SB 39 passes it will be permanently cl osed.

2:37: 59 PM

MAYA SALGANEK, UAF Film Program Fairbanks, Alaska, testified in
opposition to SB 39. She refuted the testinony from the
Manhattan Institute and tal ked about the nunber of her students
who are actively enployed in the filmindustry. She pointed out
that film nmakers prefer to hire local, trained talent and the UA
Regents consider the UA film program to be of high inportance

She said if we want Al askans to take the lead in devel opi ng 21st
Century high tech jobs in media comunication, then maintaining
the tax incentive programis the first step.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -12- February 26, 2015



2:41:56 PM

NATALI A LAMONT, representing herself, Anchor age, Al aska,
testified in opposition to SB 39. She related her experience
witing scripts and working on a set, and expressed hope that
she would see a film produced in the Yupik |anguage with Native
actors in her lifetinme. She asked the committee to keep the film
i ncentive program alive.

2:45:10 PM

| RENE BEDARD, President, Sleeping Lady Filns Wking G ant
Productions, testified in opposition to SB 39. She enphasized
that keeping the film credit is an affirmative nove for the
state. She described filns that highlight Native life and
culture and opined that it would be a shame to export that to
Canada.

2:49: 41 PM
KEN LANDFI ELD, representing hinself, Homer, Al aska, testified in
opposition to SB 39. He questioned how elimnating the tax

credit program will help the state treasury to any substanti al
anmount . The Governor already suspended the program and
elimnating it will do nothing but harm He urged the conmittee
not to kill the program

2:52: 02 PM

JAMES WALKER, wal king  West Ent ert ai nnent , Los  Angel es,
California, testified in opposition to SB 39. He tal ked about
traveling the state in the last tw years to explore the
econom ¢ and commercial climate to better understand how to work
hand-in-hand with Alaska entrepreneurs, educators, and artists
to utilize the tax incentive program to generate a viable and
profitable notion picture industry that can help incubate other
technol ogy driven industries. He said Alaska can be nore than
just a film destination by establishing jobs in the post-
production phase of the notion picture and television process

These high skill jobs can last up to two years and include film
edi ting, vi sual ef fects, ani mat i on, musi ¢ scoring, dat a
managenent, software devel opnent, engi neering, and program ng

MR. WALKER said that contrary to testinony from the Manhattan
Institute, post-production conpanies are training |ocal Al askans
in permanent jobs that wll ensure not only their econonic
vitality but that of their famlies, comunities, and the state.

2:57:26 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 13- February 26, 2015



CHAI R COSTELLO requested that individuals contact her office
before calling from offnet locations to testify on SB 39 on
Tuesday 3/ 3/15.

[SB 39 was held in conmttee.]
2:57:52 PM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,

Chair Costello adjourned the Senate Labor and Commrerce Standing
Comm ttee neeting at 2:57 p.m

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -14- February 26, 2015



